
Page 1 

 

 
AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Western Area Licensing Sub Committee 

Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN 

Date: Thursday 1 February 2024 

Time: 12.30 pm 

Matter: Application for a Premises Licence - Westbury Pizza Ltd, 8 
Westbury Mall, Edward Street, Westbury 

 

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Max Hirst of Democratic Services, County 
Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, email – max.hirst@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Allison Bucknell 
Cllr Stewart Palmen 

Cllr Peter Hutton 
 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 
Cllr Trevor Carbin 

    
 

   
 

 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By submitting a statement or question for a meeting you are consenting that you may be 
recorded presenting this and that in any case your name will be made available on the 
public record. The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.  
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
Parking 

 
To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
Our privacy policy is found here. 
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/democracy-privacy-policy


Page 3 

 

 

 



Page 4 

 

AGENDA 

1   Election of Chairman  

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting of the Sub Committee. 

2   Apologies for Absence/Substitutions  

 To receive any apologies for absence and to note any substitutions. 

3   Procedure for the Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

 The Chairman will explain the attached procedure for the members of the public 
present. 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 The Chairman will give details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 

5   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

6   Licensing Application (Pages 11 - 14) 

 To consider and determine an Application for a Premises Licence by Westbury 
Pizza Ltd (Caprinos) in respect of 8 Westbury Mall, Edward Street, Westbury, 
BA13 3DR.  The report of the Public Protection Officer (Licensing) is attached. 

 6a   Appendix 1 - Application and Plan (Pages 15 - 40) 

 6b   Appendix 2a - Conditions offered by Applicant (Pages 41 - 42) 

 6c   Appendix 2b - Email from Applicant confirming use of premises 
after 11pm (Pages 43 - 44) 

 6d   Appendix 3a - Representation from Westbury Town Council 
(Pages 45 - 46) 

 6e   Appendix 3b - Representation - Councillor Matthew Dean (Pages 
47 - 48) 

 6f   Appendix 3c - Representation - Sandoes Chartered Surveyors on 
behalf of Harford Properties Ltd (Pages 49 - 50) 

 6g   Appendix 4 - Location Map of Premises (Pages 51 - 52) 



 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

PROCEDURAL RULES FOR THE HEARING OF LICENSING ACT 2003 
APPLICATIONS 

 
 
1 Purpose 

 
 1.1 These rules have been prepared to facilitate proper consideration of licence applications, 

made under the Licensing Act 2003, by the Licensing Committee and its Sub Committees. 
 

 1.2 The rules set out a framework for how applications are to be heard and explain the role 
of the participants at the Hearing. 

 
2 Definitions 
 
 2.1 The following definitions describe the participants at and the subject matter of a Hearing: 
 

“Applicant” means the person who has submitted an Application for consideration by 
the Committee. 
 

  “Applicant’s Premises” means premises subject to the Application. 
 

“Applicant’s Representative” means a person attending a Hearing to assist or 
represent an Applicant including a lawyer. 
 
“Application” means an application for the Grant/Variation/Transfer/Review and any 
other decision to be made by the Committee/Sub-Committee in respect of a Licence. 

 
“Chairperson” means the Member who is the Chairperson of the Committee for the 
particular Hearing. 
 
“Committee” means the Council’s Licensing Committee and includes any Sub 
Committee of the Licensing Committee. 
 
“Committee Lawyer” means the Council’s Lawyer (including an external Lawyer 
instructed by the Council’s Legal & Democratic Services Manager) who is present at a 
Hearing to advise the Chairperson and the Members. 

 
“Committee Manager” means the Council’s Officer who is present at a Hearing to take 
minutes. 
 
“Committee Report” means the Licensing Officer’s written report to the Committee 
concerning an Application, a copy of which has been previously made available to the 
Applicant or their Representative, a Responsible Authority or their Representative or any 
person who has made a Relevant Representation or their Representative. 
 
“Hearing” means a meeting of the Committee at which an Application is considered. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

“Licence” means a Licence which the Committee has the power or duty inter alia to 
grant, transfer, suspend or revoke. 
 
“Licensing Officer” means the Council’s Licensing Officer(s) who is/are present at a 
Hearing to present reports in respect of an Application and to give technical advice in 
respect of an Application to the Committee when requested. 
 
“Licensing Authority” the Council in whose geographical area the subject matter of the 
Application relates to, and includes the Council’s Licensing Committee, any Sub 
Committee of the Licensing Committee and a Licensing Officer. 

 
“Member” means a Member who is a Member of the Committee that is considering an 
Application. 
 

 “Person making a Relevant Representation” means a person who is present at a 
Hearing to make representations in respect of an Application and includes any person 
who is present to assist or make representations on behalf of that person including a 
Lawyer. 
 
“Responsible Authority” means a person who is present at a Hearing to make 
representations in respect of an Application in their capacity as Responsible Authority and 
includes any person who is present to assist or make representations on behalf of the 
Responsible Authority including a Lawyer. 
 

  
3  Key Principles 
 
 3.1 The principles of ‘natural justice’, and Article 6 ‘Right to a Fair Trial’, which is one of the 

Convention Rights in the Human Rights Act 1998, require that there is a fair Hearing of 
Applications. 

 
 3.2 Natural justice is an umbrella term for the legal standards of basic fairness. This will 

include that: 
 
  3.2.1 the Applicant has an opportunity to make representations before a decision is 

made; 
 
  3.2.2 those making representations have an opportunity to voice their   
   representations before a decision is made; 
 
  3.2.3 the Applicant has an adequate opportunity to consider and respond to any 

submissions made by a Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s 
who have made a Relevant Representation; 

 
  3.2.4 the Committee does not exclude an Applicant from a Hearing in order to consider 

submissions from a Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who 
have made a Relevant Representation. 

 
 3.3 It is also fundamental that there is an orderly presentation of submissions at a Hearing so 

that the relevant issues are properly understood, evidence is tested and that oral 
statements made at the Hearing are accurately recorded. 

Page 6



 

 

 
 3.4 Ultimately the Chairperson determines the application of these rules, having regard to any 

submissions being made by those present and in particular the Committee Lawyer. 
 
4 The Hearing 
 
 4.1 The Hearing shall take place in public. 
 
  4.1.1  The Committee may exclude the public from all or part of the Hearing where it 

considers it to be in the public interest to do so and, in accordance with the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, as amended. Public includes a 
party and any person assisting or representing a party. 

 
  4.1.2 The Committee may require any person attending the Hearing who, in its opinion, 

is behaving in a disruptive manner, to leave the Hearing and may: 
 
   A refuse to permit them to return; 
   B permit them to return only on such conditions as the Committee may specify; 
   C in the event that a person is required to leave a Hearing that person may, 

before the end of the Hearing, submit to the Committee in writing any 
information which they would have given orally. 

 
 4.2 Prior to the Hearing commencing, the Chairperson shall advise the parties of the 

procedure it proposes to follow at the Hearing. 
 
 4.3  Where a party has previously requested permission for a person(s), other than their 

representative, to appear at the Hearing then the Committee shall consider whether to 
permit that request. 

 
 4.4 The Committee will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to exercise 
  their rights. 
 
 4.5 This equal maximum time may have been notified in advance of the Hearing; 
 
 4.6 Where there are a number of people who have attended the Hearing to make the same 

representation then the Committee would normally require that a spokesperson be 
appointed by them to make the representations on behalf of all of those who have made 
Relevant Representations . 

 
 
5 Presentation of Submissions 
 
 5.1 The Chairperson will introduce the Application. 
 
 5.2 In the event that the Licensing Authority has given notice to a party requiring clarification 

on a point(s) then that party shall respond to the points raised by the Licensing Authority. 
 
 5.3 Submissions shall be made in the following order unless the Chairperson directs  
  otherwise: 
 

Page 7



 

 

  5.3.1 The Licensing Officer will orally present the Committee Report and will in particular 
advise the Committee as to: 

 
   A the options available to it; 
   B the considerations that are relevant in reaching its decision. 
 
  5.3.2 The Applicant (or the Applicant’s Representative) will orally present its  
   submission which may include: 
 
   A presenting their case in accordance with the papers, which will have been 

circulated with Agenda papers; 
   B confirming key information and answer pertinent questions; and 
   C calling witnesses in support of the Application (see paragraph 4.3). 
 
  5.3.3 A Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who have made a  
   Relevant Representation will orally present their representations in turn which 
   shall include: 
 
   A the grounds of the representation to the Application; and 
   B any condition(s) that the Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any 

person/s who have made a Relevant Representation  would be happy to have 
the Application granted subject to which would cause the representation to be 
withdrawn. 

       
6 Questioning of Submissions 
 
 6.1 The Chairperson will regulate the order in which questions are asked by Members. 
 
 6.2 The Chairperson and Members, voiced through the Chairperson, may  question any 
  party following the completion of their submission. 
 
 6.3 The Chairperson will normally permit the Applicant, a Responsible Authority/Authorities 

or any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation to ask questions through 
them of the other parties. 

 
 6.4 The Chairperson may direct that questions which are not relevant to the   
  Application or one of the four Licensing Objectives are not formally put or answered. 
 
7 Documentation 
 
 7.1 No party shall present new documentation to the Committee at the Hearing other than 

with the consent of all of the other parties. This does not preclude the Licensing Officer 
from correcting errors, providing updated information or an extract from a local map 
showing the Applicant’s Premises in the context of the surrounding premises and any 
person/s who have made a Relevant Representation . If any party is granted permission 
to present supplementary papers at the Hearing they shall provide at least 10 copies at 
the start of their submission. 

 
8 Intervention 
 

The Chairperson shall permit the following interventions at any point in the Hearing: 

Page 8



 

 

 8.1 The Committee Lawyer to advise the Committee on issues of law, procedure and relevant 
considerations on decision making. If necessary, the Chairperson may require the 
Committee, the Committee Lawyer and the Committee Manager to leave the Hearing so 
that advice can be given. 

 
 8.2 The Committee Manager to advise the Committee on procedure generally, or to request 

that statements made are repeated for reasons of clarity and so that they can be properly 
recorded. 

 
 8.3 The Licensing Officer to seek to clarify statements that have been made in light of  
  information held on their file. 
 
9 Failure of Parties to Attend Hearing 
 
 9.1 If a party has informed the Licensing Authority that it does not intend to attend or be 

represented at a Hearing, the Hearing may proceed in its absence. 
 
 9.2 If a party has not indicated that it does not intend to attend or be represented at a Hearing 

and fails to attend or be represented at the Hearing then the Licensing Authority may: 
 
  9.2.1 where it considers it be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the Hearing to a 
   specified date; or 
 
  9.2.2 hold the Hearing in the party's absence. 
 
 9.3 Where the Licensing Authority holds a Hearing in the absence of a party, it shall consider 

at the Hearing the application, representations or notice  made by that party. 
 
10 Closing Submissions 
 
 10.1 The Chairperson shall allow first, the Responsible Authority/Authorities and any person/s 

who have made a Relevant Representation to make a closing oral submission(s) and 
secondly invite the Applicant or the Applicant’s Representative an opportunity to make an 
oral closing submission in support of the Application. 

 
11 Decision 
 
 11.1 The Committee, the Committee Lawyer and the Committee Manager, shall retire so that 

the decision may be considered in private, and to consider any legal issues raised by the 
Members. 

 
 11.2 The decision, and brief reasons for the decision, of the Committee shall be   
  communicated orally by the Chairperson to the parties after the Committee has  
  deliberated in private on the Application. 
 
 11.3 Written reasons shall be provided soon after the deliberations of the Application and in 
  any event within the statutory time limits. 

 

Page 9



 

 

Hearing Procedure Summary 
 
 

1. The Democratic Services Officer will request nominations for a Chairman for the Hearing. 
 
2. The Chairperson welcomes all those present and introduces the Application. 
 
3. The Chairperson introduces the members of the Sub Committee and invites all parties 

present (Applicant, Responsible Authority/Authorities,  any person/s who have made a 
Relevant Representation and Council Officers) to introduce themselves. 

 
4. The Chairperson outlines the Hearing Procedure as set out in the Agenda, makes any 

relevant announcements and asks for any declarations of interest. 
 
5. The Licensing Officer is asked to present their Committee Report. 
 
6. The Applicant/their representative is invited to address the Sub Committee in support of their 

application. 
 
7. Questions to the Applicant by Members of the Sub Committee. 
 
8. Questions to the Applicant by Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who 

have made a Relevant Representation which are to be directed through the Chairperson. 
 
9. Any Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who have made a Relevant 

Representation are invited to address the Sub Committee in support of their representations. 
 
10. Questions to the Responsible Authorities/those who have made a Relevant Representation 

by Members of the Sub Committee. 
 
11. Questions to the Responsible Authorities/those who have made a Relevant Representation 

by the Applicant, which are to be directed through the Chairperson. 
 
12. Closing submissions by those Parties who have made a Relevant Representation in reverse 

order. 
 
13. Closing submissions by the Applicant. 
 
14. Sub Committee retires with the Committee Lawyer and Committee Manager to consider its 

decision. 
 
15. Sub Committee returns and the Lawyer gives a summary of any legal advice that may have 

been given to the Sub Committee. 
 
16. The Chairperson either gives the decision with reasons, or advises that it will be released in 

writing with reasons within the statutory time limits (5 working days). 
 
 

Page 10



WILTSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
WESTERN AREA LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 
1 FEBRUARY 2024 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Application for a Premises Licence;  
Westbury Pizza Ltd (Caprinos) 8 Westbury Mall, Edward Street, Westbury, 

BA13 3DR 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To determine an application for a Premises Licence in respect of Westbury 

Pizza Ltd (Caprinos) 8 Westbury Mall, Edward Street, Westbury, BA13 3DR 
made by Westbury Pizza Ltd. 
 
 

2. Background Information  
 
2.1 An application for a Premises Licence in respect of Westbury Pizza Ltd 

(Caprinos) 8 Westbury Mall, Edward Street, Westbury, BA13 3DR has been 
made by Westbury Pizza Ltd for which three relevant representations have 
been received.  
 

2.2 Wiltshire Council (as the Licensing Authority) must hold a hearing to consider 
 the application having regard to the representations.  In accordance with 
Section 18 (3) of The Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing Sub Committee is 
required to take such of the steps listed in 2.4 below as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  In considering the 
application and the relevant representations, the Sub Committee must also 
have regard to relevant Government guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy 
 

2.3 The licensing objectives are: 
 
i) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder; 
ii) Public Safety; 
iii) The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and  
iv) The Protection of Children from Harm. 

 
2.4 Such steps are:  
 

i) To grant the licence subject to such conditions as are consistent with 
those included in the operating schedule submitted with the application, 
modified to such extent as the Sub Committee considers appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, together with any 
mandatory conditions required by the Licensing Act. 

ii) To exclude from the scope of the application any licensable activity. 
iii) To refuse to specify a person as the designated premises supervisor.  
iv) To reject the application. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
2.5 On 9 November 2023 an application for a New Premises Licence was 

received and accepted as a valid application.  
 

2.6 The application as applied for is as follows: 
 

Licensable Activity Timings Days 

Late Night Refreshment 23:00 – 00:00 Mon-Wed 

 23:00 – 01:00 Thur 

 23:00 – 03:00 Fri-Sat 

 23:00 – 02:00 Sun 

 Non-Standard timings – An additional hour 
on public holidays, bank holidays and 
national sporting events. 

 
 

A copy of the application form including the plan is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
2.7 There are currently no take-aways in Westbury with a licence for late night 

refreshment.  
 
3. Consultation and Representations 
 
3.1  The application process requires the application to be advertised, by the 

Applicant, in a local news publication within 10 working days, starting on the 
day after the authority receives it and for a public notice (on pale blue paper) 
to be posted on the premises.  In addition, the Licensing Authority advertises 
the application on its website, for a period of 28 consecutive days, starting the 
day after the authority receives the application.  

 
3.2 Due to not having advertised, the 28 day consultation period was extended 

until 19 December 2023.  
 
3.3 During the consultation period four relevant representations have been 

received from a local resident, a local property management company, a local 
Councillor and from the Westbury Town Council.  

 
3.4 In response to the representation received by the local resident regarding 

public nuisance caused by light from the premises, Mr Sancolcar, director of 
Westbury Pizza Ltd, offered up a number of conditions to be added to the 
licence if it were to be granted. These can be found in Appendix 2. The 
resident was satisfied that this resolved their concerns and subsequently 
withdrew their representation.  

 
3.5  During the consultation period Mr Sancolcar also confirmed that customers 

would not be permitted to sit inside the premises after 11pm as it would be a 
collection only service after this time. Appendix 2a. 

 
3.6 Representations Received 
 

 Rep 1, Julie Dyer on behalf of Westbury Town Council 

Page 12



 Rep 2, Councillor Matthew Dean, Wiltshire Councillor and Westbury Town 
Council 

 Rep 3, Sandoes Chartered Surveyor, Edward Street, Westbury (on behalf 
of Harford Properties Ltd) 

 
3.7 Responsible Authorities 
 

 No Responsible Authority has made a representation in connection with this 
application. 
 

3.8 A summary of the representations made is detailed in the table below: 
 
 

Representation Licensing Objective Comments 

Representation 1  Crime and disorder 
Public nuisance 

Longer opening hours may provide a 
place for social gatherings after local 
pubs have closed. Increasing the 
chance of people who may be 
intoxicated and cause nuisance or 
other social problems. Increase of 
traffic, noise and disturbance in 
densely populated area 

Representation 2  Public nuisance Noise from customers and drivers.  
Increase in litter in the area. 

Representation 3  Public nuisance Light disturbance from the premises. 
The surrounding flats are lit up by the 
premises. Use of car park by delivery 
drivers. Increase in litter.  

 
3.9 The relevant representations are attached as Appendices 3a-c.   
 
3.10 Attached as Appendix 4 is a plan showing the location of the premises.  
   
 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 This hearing is governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations. 

These provide that hearings should be held in public unless the Licensing 
Authority considers that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs 
the public interest in the hearing taking place in public. 

 
4.2 The Applicant, and all persons who have made representations have been 

informed of the date, time and location of the hearing and their right to attend 
and be represented. 

 
4.3 At the hearing all those who have made representations are entitled to 

address the Sub Committee and to ask questions of another party, with the 
consent of the Sub Committee.  

 
 
 
 

Page 13



5. Officer Recommendations 
 
5.1 Officers are not permitted to make a recommendation – the decision is to be 
 reached by the members of the Licensing Sub Committee. 
 
6. Right of Appeal 
 
6.1 It should be noted that the Applicant and those persons who have made 

representations may appeal the decision made by the Licensing Sub 
Committee to the Magistrates Court.  The appeal must be lodged with the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of the notification of the decision. 

 
6.2 In the event of an appeal being lodged, the decision made by the Licensing 

Sub Committee remains valid until any appeal is heard and any decision made 
by the Magistrates Court. 

 
6.3 A Responsible Authority or any person may apply to the Licensing Authority 

for a Review of a Premises Licence.  Whether or not a Review Hearing takes 
place is in the discretion of the Licensing Authority, but, if requested by a 
person other than a Responsible Authority it will not normally be granted within 
the first 12 months except for the most compelling circumstances. 

 
 

 
Report Author: Carla Adkins 
 
Public Protection (Licensing) 
 
Date of Report: 22 December 2023 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of this Report 
 

 The Licensing Act 2003 

 The Licensing Act (Hearings) Regulations 2005 

 Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003  

 Wiltshire Council Licensing Policy 

 The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 
 

 
Appendices 
 
1 Application and Plan  
2 Conditions offered by applicant 

  2a   Email from applicant confirming use after 11pm 
3a Rep 1 - Westbury Town Council 
3b Rep 2 - Councillor Matthew Dean, Wiltshire Council and Westbury Town 

Council 
3c Rep 3 – Sandoes Chartered Surveyors on behalf of Harford Properties 

Ltd 
4 Location map of premises 

Page 14



Page 15

Agenda Item 6a



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Caprinos Westbury <westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk>  
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 10:55 PM 
To: Adkins, Carla <carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Licensing Act 2003 - Representation received 
 

Hi Carla  
   
after 11 pm collection is open but only collecton no sit in only order online and collect   
   
reagrds   
snehal sancolcar   
   
On 11/12/2023 04:53 PST Adkins, Carla <carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk> wrote:  
   
   

Good Afternoon Mr Sancolcar 

 Thank you for emailing this across.  

 Please could you clarify… after 11pm will it be delivery only, or will customers be able to 
collect/enter the premises?  

 If you could let me know, it would be much appreciated.  

Kind regards,  

Carla 

 Carla Adkins 

Public Protection Officer (Licensing)  

  

DDI: 01249 706438 

Internal: 21438 

 
Web: www.wiltshire.gov.uk  

Follow Wiltshire Council 

 

 You don't often get email from westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk. Learn why this is important  

Page 41

Agenda Item 6b

mailto:carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ccarla.adkins%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C5d468f67c2d24db1e78208dbfa9c27d5%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C638379320853716251%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=JutleqzasyxRyhFkLmdazHWK%2F8mnohVzoFPjX5vRa3M%3D&reserved=0
mailto:westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
From: Caprinos Westbury <westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 12, 2023 11:25 AM 
To: Adkins, Carla <carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Westbury Pizza 
 

Hi Carla  
   
Yes that's all right   
   
Regards   
snehal sancolcar  
On 12/12/2023 03:02 PST Adkins, Carla <carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk> wrote:  
   
   

Good Morning Mr Sancolcar,  

  

Thank you for your email. Please can you confirm that you are happy with the following points being 
added as conditions to a licence if it were granted:  

  

• The outside lights and lit signage will be turned off from 11pm.  
• The windows of the premises will be tinted to prevent light from inside being a nuisance 
• From 11pm, the entrance to the premises which faces the nearest resident will be locked.  
• From 11pm all staff, including delivery drivers, will use the rear entrance to the premises 

 Kind regards,  

 Carla  

 Carla Adkins 

Public Protection Officer (Licensing)  

  

DDI: 01249 706438 

Internal: 21438 

Web: www.wiltshire.gov.uk  

 You don't often get email from westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk. Learn why this is important  

Page 43

Agenda Item 6c

mailto:carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ccarla.adkins%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C941761fe2ff5452a32a308dbfb04f0f6%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C638379770908825567%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9OtW3sgI8zAILt3ywnyLbmF98rb4g7P3Z7VY985elx4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


Follow Wiltshire Council 

  

From: Caprinos Westbury <westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk>  
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 11:53 AM 
To: Adkins, Carla <carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Licensing Act 2003 - Representation received 

  

Hi Carla 

  

As per our conversation today I have already spoken to on saterday morning 
regrading their concerns I have told her that after 11pm my shop light which is coming to her 
window will be off and I will put some tinted window film so in future no light will come onher 
window as well as we will close our door which is facing her flat at 11pm and all my staff will use 
back door to come in an out of store and other issuse please fill free to contact me   

  

Regards  

snehal  sancolcar 

 

  You don't often get email from westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk. Learn why this is important   

Page 44

mailto:westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk
mailto:carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


1

Adkins, Carla

From: Julie Dyer <Julie.Dyer@westburytowncouncil.gov.uk>

Sent: 19 December 2023 16:43

To: Adkins, Carla

Cc: Deborah Urch

Subject: RE: Application for a new premises licence - Westbury Pizza Ltd (Caprinos) 8-10 

Westbury Mall, Edward Street, Westbury, BA13 3DR

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hello Carla 
 
As per our original objection below, we would not support any application to extend opening hours 
beyond midnight which is in line with other similar establishments in the town centre. 
 

1. Protection of youth from harm – longer hours will increase access to unhealthy food, will 
not encourage healthy eating and have a detrimental impact on long term health. 

  
2. Prevention of crime and disorder and public safety – longer opening hours will provide a 

place for social gatherings after local pubs have closed. Increasing the chance of people 
who may be intoxicated and cause nuisance or other social problems. 

  
3. Prevention of public nuisance - longer hours will produce increased traffic, noise and 

disturbance in a densely populated area. 
  

4. We would not support an application to extend opening hours beyond midnight in line with 
other takeaway outlets in the town centre. 

 
Many thanks. 
 
Kind regards 
 

Julie Dyer 

 

 

Julie Dyer – Support Services Team 
Leader 
Julie.dyer@westburytowncouncil.gov.uk  
Phone: 01373 822232 | DDI: 01373 480913 
Mobile : 07391 580 959 
The Laverton, Bratton Road, Westbury 
Wiltshire, BA13 3EN 
www.westburytowncouncil.gov.uk 

 

The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in message only. If you 
received this message by mistake, please delete this message and let us know. 

Please consider the environment. Do not print this email unless you really need to. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6d



This page is intentionally left blank



-----Original Message----- 
From: Matthew Dean  
Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2023 3:21 PM 
To: PublicprotectionNorth <PublicprotectionNorth@wiltshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Westbury Pizza Limited - application to extend opening hours ; email objection 
 
[You don't often get email from  Learn why this is important at 
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
RE: Caprinos Pizza Westbury BA13 Application for variation of a premises licence 
 
I am writing in my capacity as both a Westbury Councillor and Westbury Town Councillor to object to 
the above application. 
 
Caprinos already trades over long opening hours to the detriment of local residents. The business is 
situated in what, prior to their occupation, was the edge of a quiet residential area. While the pizza 
takeaway is open, it generates quite a lot of noise from customers picking up pizzas and from service 
vehicles that the take away business use to deliver pizzas. Inevitably there is disruption to 
neighbouring households as the business generates noise as drivers leave their lights on, bang doors, 
idle engines and park illegally on the road. Groups of pedestrian visitors often eat their pizzas outside 
while drivers often consume their pizzas in their cars with their lights on and motors running. All this 
creates noise which is clearly audible in the flats and houses situated near the takeaway. 
 
Both car users and pedestrian visitors on occasion discard their pizza boxes and other detritus on the 
street and in the communual courtyard of the adjacent residential property which has resulted in a 
much increased litter problem in the vicinity of the existing pizza take away. 
 
To some extent this has been tolerated by local residents as the quid pro quo of having the amenity 
of a take away in the area but everyone that has spoken to me is strongly against the proposals to 
extend opening hours of the premises further as the impact on local residents would be 
unacceptable. 
 
There is realistically no prospect of parking or litter enforcement in the early hours so effectively 
there is nothing to be done that will alleviate what inevitably will be an increase antisocial behaviour 
from late night/ early morning visitors to Caprinos. 
 
It is unacceptable for local residents to have to tolerate late night and early morning disturbance on a 
regular basis over a whole week and the proposal to extend opening hours beyond the existing 
provision will clearly do this. 
 
The management of Sandoes, the Angel Public House and Morrisons are all providing additional 
cleaning both on street and within the curtilage of their properties which is evidence of existing anti 
social behaviour. Further opening will only exacerbate this problem and an unreasonable burden. 
 
I therefore would object to the application and request the business trades strictly to its existing 
permitted hours which I would ask Wiltshire Council do not extend further. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6e

mailto:PublicprotectionNorth@wiltshire.gov.uk
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


Matthew Dean 
 
Westbury Town Councillor 
Wiltshire Councillor for Westbury West. 
 
 
 

Page 48



Page 49

Agenda Item 6f



Page 50



1:1,654 °© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100049050. Copyright Getmapping PLC. Wiltshire Council Bythesea Road Trowbridge Wiltshire BA14 8JN. www.wiltshire.gov.uk customerservices@wiltshire.gov.uk

Location Map - Westbury Pizza (Caprinos)
Date: 22 Dec 2023
Centre Coordinate: 387,305  151,267

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 6g



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Procedure for the Meeting
	6 Licensing Application
	6a Appendix 1 - Application and Plan
	Westbury Pizza Application
	Plan Westbury Pizza

	6b Appendix 2a - Conditions offered by Applicant
	6c Appendix 2b - Email from Applicant confirming use of premises after 11pm
	From: Caprinos Westbury <westbury@caprinospizza.co.uk>  Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 11:53 AM To: Adkins, Carla <carla.adkins@wiltshire.gov.uk> Subject: Re: Licensing Act 2003 - Representation received

	6d Appendix 3a - Representation from Westbury Town Council
	6e Appendix 3b - Representation - Councillor Matthew Dean
	From: Matthew Dean <matthewjdean@hotmail.com>

	6f Appendix 3c - Representation - Sandoes Chartered Surveyors on behalf of Harford Properties Ltd
	6g Appendix 4 - Location Map of Premises

